
 
 

07-07-2025 Town Council Agenda v4.docx     Page 1 of 7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED IN PERSON ONLY.  

THIS MEETING WILL BE LIVE STREAMED: To view the meeting with no interaction:  
Live Stream 

The public is welcome to participate in Town Council meetings in several ways:  
• Citizens are invited to speak on the topic of a Public Hearing which will be listed on the agenda.  
• Citizens may speak during Open Forum to clarify or comment on an item on the agenda or address 

items not on the agenda.  
o A Citizen may schedule a Request to Address with the Town Council no less than seven day before 

the meeting in which they would like to appear. Their topic will be listed on the agenda and Town 
Councilors may respond to their comments.  

o Citizens may also simply request to speak in Open Forum at a Council meeting by raising their 
hands and being recognized by the Town Council President. (See below) 

• At other times during a Town Council meeting, citizens may speak at the discretion of the Council 
President or of a majority of Councilors present.  

Anyone wishing to speak should use the microphone at the front of the room and state their name and 
address for the record. Comments must be addressed to the Council, not the audience. The Town Council 
hopes that citizens and Councilors alike will be respectful of each other, and mindful of everyone’s time. 
For those speaking on an agenda item, please note that this is the time reserved for councilors to discuss 
these items and your participation in the discussion is at the discretion of the Council.  

Attachments for items on this meeting agenda are available to the public on the Town website calendar: 
https://jamestownri.gov/calendar 

 TOWN COUNCIL INTERVIEW SCHEDULE: The Jamestown Town Council will 
conduct interviews of applicants for the committee vacancies as follows: 

TIME NAME COMMITTEE 
5:30 Owen Hanley Ft. Getty Ad Hoc 
5:35 Michael Schnack Ft. Getty Ad Hoc 

 ROLL CALL 

 CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 
Jamestown Town Hall 

Rosamond A. Tefft Council Chambers  
93 Narragansett Avenue 
Monday, July 7, 2025 

5:30 P.M. 
 

Page 1 of 135

https://iframe.dacast.com/live/79405458-7b7f-6e5b-9092-c6c6c067d8de/50446691-8d6f-1dd0-b613-752494bc48e5
https://jamestownri.gov/calendar


 
 

07-07-2025 Town Council Agenda v4.docx     Page 2 of 7 
 

 OPEN FORUM 
Comments are not limited to items on this agenda. However, items not on this agenda will only be 
heard and not acted upon by the Town Council. Note: Section 42-46-6 of the Open Meetings Act 
and Department of the Attorney General Advisory Opinions relevant to this item on any public body 
meeting agenda specifically prohibit the Town Council from discussing, considering, or acting on 
any topic, statement, or question presented. The Town Council may, if warranted, refer such matters 
to an appropriate committee, to another body or official, or post the matter for consideration at a 
properly-noticed, future meeting. 

 Scheduled request to address: None at this time. 
 Non-scheduled request to address. 

 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, PRESENTATIONS, 
RESOLUTIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS  

 Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Resolution 2025-22, Resolution of 
the Town Council Authorizing Issuance of Up to $950,000 in Bonds for Public 
Works (Highway) Vehicles and Other Equipment 

 Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Proclamation 2025-23, August 23, 
2025, Sunflower Family Festival Day. 

 PUBLIC HEARINGS, LICENSES, AND PERMITS 
The Town Council will review each license application and vote on it individually. All approvals 
for licenses and permits are subject to the resolution of debts, taxes, and appropriate signatures as 
well as, when applicable, proof of insurance. 

 Public Hearings:  Town Council Sitting as the Alcohol Beverage Licensing Board 
 Notice is hereby given by the Town Council of the Town of Jamestown, 

being the Licensing Board in said Town as provided under Title 3, Chapters 
1-12 of the General Laws of Rhode Island 1956, and as amended, that the 
following RENEWAL applications have been received by the Town 
Council for licenses under said Act, for the year July 7, 2025 to November 
30, 2025, duly advertised in the May 29th and June 5th editions of the 
Jamestown Press.; Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote to 
Approve: 

CLASS B – VICTUALER 
Tallulah’s Taqueria, LLC 

dba: JTN Store- Tallulah’s Taqueria 
35 Narragansett Avenue, Unit D 

Jamestown, RI 02835  

Page 2 of 135



 
 

07-07-2025 Town Council Agenda v4.docx     Page 3 of 7 
 

 Notice is hereby given by the Town Council of Jamestown, being the 
Licensing Board in said Town: Pursuant to RIGL §3-7-14, the following 
license application (F-25-12) has been received under said Act for a one-
day license on July 16, 2025: 

CLASS F (NON-PROFIT) 
Jamestown Arts Center 

18 Valley Street 
Jamestown, RI 02835 

a) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote for Approval of the 
Jamestown Historical Society one-day CLASS F (NON-PROFIT) 
LIQUOR LICENSE (Number 6 of 12 licenses per calendar year issued 
per RIGL§3-7-14) 

Town Council Adjourns from sitting as the Alcohol Beverage Licensing Board 

 Public Hearings: Proposed amendment to the Code of Ordinances regarding 
Chapter 6 - Amusements And Entertainment, Article III. Mechanical or Coin-
Operated Devices and Arcades; Division 1: Sec. 6-56, Division 2: Sec 6-71, Sec 6-
72, Sec 6-73, Sec. 6-74, Sec. 6-75, Sec. 6-76; Division 3: Sec. 6-91, Sec. 6- 92, Sec. 
6-93, Sec. 6-94. Opportunity shall be given to all persons interested to be heard 
upon the matter at the public hearing. The following proposed ordinance 
amendment is under consideration and may be adopted and/or altered or amended 
prior to the close of the public hearing without further advertising, as a result of 
further study or because of the views expressed at the public hearing. 

 Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote:  Approval of the proposed 
amendments to Chapter 6 - Amusements And Entertainment, Article III. 
Mechanical or Coin-Operated Devices and Arcades; Division 1: Sec. 6-56, 
Division 2: Sec 6-71, Sec 6-72, Sec 6-73, Sec. 6-74, Sec. 6-75, Sec. 6-76; 
Division 3: Sec. 6-91, Sec. 6- 92, Sec. 6-93, Sec. 6-94.  

Page 3 of 135



 
 

07-07-2025 Town Council Agenda v4.docx     Page 4 of 7 
 

 Licenses and Permits 
 Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Approval of Application 

that have been received by the Town Council for Arcade License/Multi-
License Application for the year July 7, 2025-December 31, 2025, upon 
resolution of debts, taxes, State approval and appropriate signatures: 
License required: No person licensed by virtue of this article shall have or 
assemble more than three electronic video games and two mechanical 
amusement devices in any one place of business or premises, unless such 
person has obtained an arcade license; No person licensed to operate an 
arcade shall maintain more than ten (10) mechanical amusement devices 
and/or electronic video games; for the following Shall be determined upon 
review of the proposed floor plan to include type, size and location of each 
machine by the fire marshal in accordance with all state and local capacity, 
occupancy and fire regulations. In no case shall the total number of 
machines exceed thirty (30). 
a) Applicant:   Conanicut Marine Services 

Location:   20 Narragansett Avenue 
Days of Week/Hours  
of Operation:   Sunday-Saturday, 9 a.m.-9 p.m. 
Occupancy Capacity:  49 people (maximum) 
Number of devices:  22 total (10 approved on June 16, 2025, and 

12 additional per this application.) 

 COUNCIL, ADMINISTRATOR, SOLICITOR, COMMISSION/COMMITTEE 
COMMENTS & REPORTS  
Please Note the Following Items are Status Reports and Matters of Interest to the Council and are 
for Informational Purposes unless Indicated Otherwise:  

 Town Administrator’s Report: Edward A. Mello 
 Senior Center Project 
 Town Hall Project 
 Town Welcome Signs (consent agenda) 
 Sustainability Coordinator 
 Paving Update 
 Short-Term Rental registration update 
 Streetlights maintenance update 
 Electricity Purchase (consent agenda) 
 Town website 

 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: At the request of Town 

Administrator Mello, discussion of the proposed master vision plan for ferry 
terminal improvements, Phase I, Ferry Fender Piling Project  

Page 4 of 135



 
 

07-07-2025 Town Council Agenda v4.docx     Page 5 of 7 
 

 NEW BUSINESS 
No items at this time. 

 ORDINANCES, APPOINTMENTS, VACANCIES, AND EXPIRING TERMS 
No items at this time. 

 CONSENT AGENDA 
An item on the Consent Agenda need not be removed for simple clarification or correction of 
typographical errors. Approval of the Consent Agenda shall be equivalent to the approval of each 
item as if it had been acted upon separately for review, discussion, and/or potential action and/or 
vote. A Consent Agenda item or items may be removed by the Town Council for review, discussion, 
and/or potential action and or vote. 

 Minutes of Boards/Commissions/Committees 
 Affordable Housing, May 21, 2025 
 Board of Canvassers, April 16, 2025 
 Board of Canvassers, April 30, 2025 
 Board of Canvassers, May 8, 2025 
 Board of Canvassers, June 2, 2025 
 Harbor Commission, May 14, 2025 
 Housing Authority, April 9, 2025 
 Housing Authority, May 9, 2025 
 Housing Authority, May 14, 2025 

 Town Council consent for the replacement of the (2) two Town welcome signs, as 
presented by ArtSignWorks, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $4,900.  

 Town Council consent to fully execute a purchasing agreement for electricity for 
the period of December 2025 through December 2029 at a rate of $0.1149/ kWh, 
through a cooperative purchasing agreement with the Rhode Island League of Cities 
and Towns.   

 All One-Day Event/ Entertainment license application approvals are subject to any 
COVID-19 protocols in effect at the time of the event: 

 Applicant: St. Matthew Church (ENT-25-38) 
Event:  St. Matthew’s Summer Fair  
Date:  July 19, 2025 
Location: 87 Narragansett Avenue 

 Applicant: Jamestown Arts Center (JAC) (ENT-25-40) 
Event:  The Lost Bird Project 
Date:  July 16, 2025 
Location: JAC, 18 Valley Street. 

 Applicant: Out of the Box Gallery (OOBG) (ENT-25-41) 
Event:  Swamp Tiki 
Date:  July 24, 2025 
Location: OOBG, 11 Clinton Avenue.  

Page 5 of 135



 
 

07-07-2025 Town Council Agenda v4.docx     Page 6 of 7 
 

 Ratification of the Administratively approved Short-Term Rental application(s) 
for the period of January 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025, duly advertised in 
the    editions(s) of the Jamestown Press; upon resolution of debts, taxes, State 
approval(s) and appropriate signature(s): 

 STR-129  Annlee Landman 10 Boston Avenue 
 STR-174  Anna Whitson  20 Hull Street 

 COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS AND 
RESOLUTIONS FROM OTHER RHODE ISLAND CITIES AND TOWNS 
The Council may acknowledge any of the listed Communications and Proclamations and 
Resolutions. Should any member wish to have a conversation on any of the matters, the item will 
be placed on a future agenda for review, discussion, and/or potential action and/or vote.  

 Communications Received: 
 Copy of letters to: Town Council   

From:   Lawn Avenue Fifth Graders  
Cade Trifero, Isabella Paradis, Gianna DiMaggio, Wyatt Rathbun, Kyla 
Barron, Ella Smith, Elle Emory 

 Copy of email to:  Town Council 
From:    Christopher Olobi 
Date:   June 13, 2025 
RE:    Head’s Beach Dog Rule Infractions 

 Copy of email to:  Town Council 
From:    Mary Lou Sanborn 
Date:   June 15, 2025 
RE:    June 16, 2025 Town Council Meeting Agenda 

 Copy of email to:  Town Council 
From:    Ramona Bessinger 
Date:   June 16-30, 2025 
RE:    Various topics 

 Copy of email to:  Town Council 
From:    Peter Cosel 
Date:   June 24, 2025 
RE:    16 Pennsylvania Avenue, Lot 804 

 Proclamations and Resolutions from other Rhode Island Cities and Towns 
 Burrillville Town Council, Resolution 25-25, In Opposition to Senate Bill 

2025- S 0909 and House Bill 2025- H 6273 Relating to Access to the Public 
Records Act (APRA). 

 Resolution of the Town of Smithfield, Opposing House Bill 5436 and 
Senate Bill 359.  

Page 6 of 135



 
 

07-07-2025 Town Council Agenda v4.docx     Page 7 of 7 
 

 OPEN FORUM 
Comments are not limited to items on this agenda. However, items not on this agenda will only be heard and not acted 
upon by the Town Council. Note: Section 42-46-6 of the Open Meetings Act and Department of the Attorney General 
Advisory Opinions relevant to this item on any public body meeting agenda specifically prohibit the Town Council 
from discussing, considering, or acting on any topic, statement, or question presented. The Town Council may, if 
warranted, refer such matters to an appropriate committee, to another body or official, or post the matter for 
consideration at a properly-noticed, future meeting. 

 Continued (If necessary)  

 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
The Town Council may seek to enter into Executive Session and/or Open Session for 
review, discussion, and/or potential action and/or vote on the following: 

 Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote in Executive Session and/or open 
session pursuant to RIGL §42-46-5(a) Subsection (5) the acquisition and/or lease 
of real property for public purposes, or of the disposition of publicly held property 
wherein advanced public information would be detrimental to the interest of the 
public. (Potential lease of publicly held property AP 9-152). 

 Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote in Executive Session and/or open 
session pursuant to § 42-46-5(a) Subsection (2) Collective Bargaining (NAGE 69). 

 The Town Council may convene into Executive Session to discuss, take possible 
action, and/or vote pursuant to the relevant requirements of R.I.G.L. § 42-46-5(a) 
Subsection (1) Personnel (job performance, character, or physical or mental health 
of Town Administrator Edward Mello; Performance Review; provided that such 
person affected shall have been notified in advance in writing and advised that he 
may require that the discussion be held at an open meeting). Discussion and/or 
Potential action, announcement, and/or vote(s) from Executive Session and/or 
Open Session concerning Town Administrator Performance Review; with terms 
and conditions of employment to be discussed and voted upon by the Town Council 
at the meeting. 

 Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote in Executive Session and/or open 
session pursuant to RIGL §42-46-5(a) Subsection (5) the acquisition and/or lease 
of real property for public purposes, or of the disposition of publicly held property 
wherein advanced public information would be detrimental to the interest of the 
public. (Potential lease of publicly held property Plat 9 Lot 355 & 356; and Plat 8 
Lot 530). 

 ADJOURNMENT 
Pursuant to RIGL § 42-46-6(c) Notice of this meeting shall be posted on the Secretary of State’s 
website and at the Town Hall and the Jamestown Philomenian Library. Notice is also posted at the 
Jamestown Police Station and on the Internet at www.jamestownri.gov.   

ALL NOTE: If communications assistance is needed or other accommodations to ensure equal 
participation, please call 1-800-745-5555, or contact the Town Clerk at 401-423-9800, via facsimile to 
401-423-7230, or email to rfagan@jamestownri.net not less than three (3) business days prior to the 
meeting.   Posted on the RI Secretary of State website on July 3, 2025. 

Page 7 of 135



Page 8 of 135



No.  2025-22 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF UP TO $950,000 IN BONDS FOR  

PUBLIC WORKS (HIGHWAY) VEHICLES AND OTHER EQUIPMENT  
 
RESOLVED THAT: 
 
Section 1.   Pursuant to Resolution # 6 adopted at the Financial Town Meeting of June 2, 2025 and Chapter 45-
12 of the General Laws of the State of Rhode Island, the Finance Director and the President of the Town 
Council are authorized to borrow and issue bonds in the name of the Town up to the amount of Nine Hundred 
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($950,000.00) to finance highway department vehicles, equipment and/or a sign 
machine (the “Project”) and costs of issuance.  
 
Section 2. The bonds shall be signed by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Finance Director and the 
President of the Town Council.  The manner of sale, denominations, maturities, interest rates and other terms, 
conditions and details of any bonds issued hereunder may be fixed by the aforesaid officers authorized to sign 
the bonds.  Any bonds issued under this Resolution and any other authorized issue of bonds of the town may be 
consolidated and issued at the same time as a single bond issue.   
 
Section 3.  The designation of a securities depository and paying agent, if any, not fixed by provisions of law, 
may be fixed by the Finance Director.    
 
Section 4.  The Finance Director is hereby authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the Town such 
additional agreements as are necessary to effect the issuance of bonds hereunder, the due authorization thereof 
being conclusively demonstrated by his or her execution and delivery of such agreements. The Finance Director 
is hereby authorized to deliver such bonds to the purchasers thereof and said officer is authorized and instructed 
to take all actions, on behalf of the Town, necessary to ensure that the interest on the bonds will be excludable 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and to refrain from all actions which would cause interest 
on the bonds to be subject to federal income taxes.  The Finance Director is authorized to deem the bonds, and 
to the extent not deemed to be, to designate the bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for the purposes of 
Section 265 (b) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended.  The Finance Director is hereby 
authorized to take such action as to comply with Rule 15 c 2 – 12 (b) (5) of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and is authorized to execute and deliver a Continuing Disclosure Certificate.   
 
Section 5.  Pending the issuance of bonds under Section 1 hereof, the Finance Director may expend funds from 
the general treasury of the Town for the purposes specified in Section 1 under contracts awarded by the Town 
Council.  Any advances made under this Section 5 shall be repaid without interest from the proceeds of bonds 
issued hereunder or from the proceeds of applicable federal or state assistance or from other available funds. 
 
Section 6. The Town hereby declares that it reasonably expects to reimburse the expenditures authorized in 
Section 5 with proceeds of debt to be issued by the Town.  This Resolution is a declaration of official intent 
under Treasury Regulation 1.103-18. 
 
Section 7.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage.  

 
By Order of the Jamestown Town Council 

 
___________________________________ 

Nancy A. Beye, President 
                                  
 ________________________            
     Mary E. Meagher,                                      Erik G. Brine, Vice President 
      
  _____________________________         
     Mary G. Glackin                       E. Edward Ross 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereby attach my hand and the official seal  
of the Town of Jamestown this 7TH day of July, 2025. 

 
_______________________________________ 

Roberta J. Fagan, CMC, Town Clerk 

Town of Jamestown 
Resolution of the Town Council 

Page 15 of 135



TOWN OF JAMESTOWN 

PROCLAMATION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL 
No. 2025-23 

“August 23, 2025 Sunflower Family Festival Day” 
 

WHEREAS: the Jamestown Ukraine Relief Project is celebrating its 4th annual Sunflower Family 
Festival honoring the people and culture of Ukraine; and 

WHEREAS: The sunflower is the national flower of Ukraine; and 

WHEREAS: The Sunflower Family Festival will take place at Lawn School Field, Saturday, 
August 23, 2025, from 11-2 pm; and 

WHEREAS: the Sunflower Family Festival is a volunteer and collaborative event of the 
Jamestown Community and surrounding towns, and is funded through donations 
and in-kind contributions; and 

WHEREAS: the Sunflower Family Festival has free admission and will showcase the music of 
Ukraine as well as local performers, in addition to activities for children, sunflower 
crafts, games, face painting, traditional Ukrainian food and traditions, and more; 
and 

WHEREAS: the community of Jamestown and area communities seek to demonstrate their 
support and admiration for the people of Ukraine in their ongoing and painful 
struggle for freedom; and 

WHEREAS: the Sunflower Family Festival warmly welcomes and salutes Rhode Island’s new 
Ukrainian immigrants and the decades-long contributions of our Ukrainian-
American neighbors to the vitality, cultural heritage, and civic life of our State; and 

WHEREAS: this event will provide fun and interesting information about Ukraine for the whole 
family; 

NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT HEREBY BE RESOLVED, the Town Council for the Town of 
Jamestown, does hereby declare Saturday, August 23rd, 2025 as: 

SUNFLOWER FAMILY FESTIVAL DAY 

And encourage all community members, along with our neighbors throughout the region and 
state of Rhode Island, to enjoy the displays and family fun activities and to support the people of 
Ukraine. 

By Order of the Jamestown Town Council, 

        
Nancy A. Beye, President 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereby attach my hand and the 

Official seal of the Town of Jamestown this 7th day of July 2025. 
 

________________________________________ 
Roberta J. Fagan, CMC, Town Clerk 

Page 16 of 135



  

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
TOWN OF JAMESTOWN 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Town Council of the Town of Jamestown will conduct a public 
hearing on July 7, 2025 at 5:30 p.m. at the Jamestown Town Hall, 93 Narragansett Avenue on the 
following proposed amendment to the Code of Ordinances regarding Chapter 6 - Amusements 
And Entertainment, Article III. Mechanical or Coin-Operated Devices and Arcades; Division 1: 
Sec. 6-56, Division 2: Sec 6-71, Sec 6-72, Sec 6-73, Sec. 6-74, Sec. 6-75, Sec. 6-76; Division 3: 
Sec. 6-91, Sec. 6- 92, Sec. 6-93, Sec. 6-94. Opportunity shall be given to all persons interested to 
be heard upon the matter at the public hearing.  The following proposed ordinance amendment is 
under consideration and may be adopted and/or altered or amended prior to the close of the public 
hearing without further advertising, as a result of further study or because of the views expressed 
at the public hearing.  Any alteration or amendment must be presented for comment in the course 
of the public hearing.  The proposed amendment is available for review and/or purchase at the 
Town Clerk’s Office between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, 
excluding Holidays.  

 
Section 1. The Jamestown Code of Ordinances, Chapter 6 - Amusements And Entertainment, 
Article III. Mechanical or Coin-Operated Devices and Arcades as the same may have been 
heretofore amended, is hereby amended by changing the text of the Chapter, as follows: 
 

NOTE: words set as strikethrough are to be deleted from the ordinance; words 
underlined are to be added to the ordinance.  

 
 See Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 2. The Town Clerk is hereby authorized to cause said changes to be made to Chapter 
70 of the Town of Jamestown’s Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 3. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its passage. 
 
Ad Date(s):   June 19, 2025   
Publication Source:  Jamestown Press  
Hearing Date:   July 7, 2025   
Action:       
Certified:       
 
  

Page 23 of 135



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Article III. Mechanical, Electronic Or Coin-Operated Devices And Arcades 
Division 1. Generally 
Sec. 6-56. Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Electronic video games means any machine, which, upon the insertion of a coin, token, plate, 
slug or disc, may be operated by the public generally for use for a fee, as a game, entertainment or 
amusement, whether or not registering a score. The term "electronic video games" includes any 
device which is constructed or operates by the methods or principles of electronics, or which 
utilizes the transactions similar thereto under whatever name they may be described.  

Jukebox means any music vending machine, contrivance or device which for a fee, upon the 
insertion of a coin, slug, token, plate, disc or key into any slot, crevice or other opening, or by the 
payment of any price, operates or may be operated for the emission of songs, music or similar 
amusement.  

Mechanical amusement device means any machine which for a fee,  upon the insertion of a 
coin, slug, token, plate or disc, may be operated by the public generally for use as a game, 
entertainment or amusement, whether or not registering a score. It shall include such devices as 
marble machines, pinball machines, skill ball, mechanical grab machines, mechanical pool tables 
and all games, operations or transactions similar thereto, under whatever name they may be 
described.  
Division 2. License 
Sec. 6-71. Required. 
Sec. 6-72. Application; information required. 
The application for the license shall contain the following information:   
(4) Description of machine (s) to be covered by the license, including mechanical features and 
serial number.  
Sec. 6-73. Submission of application; investigation and inspection; denial of license for gambling 
device; display of license. 
(a) Application for a license shall be submitted annually to the Town Clerk. made out in 
triplicate, one copy being referred to the chief of police, the second copy to the building official's 
office, and the third copy to the fire marshal.  
Sec. 6-74. Fees. 
Every applicant, before being granted a license, shall pay an annual license fee for the privilege of 
operating or maintaining for operation each jukebox, mechanical amusement device or electronic 
video game. The annual fees shall be as provided in appendix C. On December 31  November 30 
next following the date of issuance, each annual license shall expire.  
Sec. 6-75. Arcade. 
  

Page 24 of 135



 

 

(c) Number of devices limited. No person licensed to operate an arcade shall maintain more 
than ten mechanical amusement devices and/or electronic video games. Shall be determined upon 
review of the proposed floor plan to include type, size and location of each machine by the fire 
marshal in accordance with all state and local capacity, occupancy and fire regulations. In no case 
shall the total number of machines exceed thirty (30). 
(d)  Hours of operation. Arcades shall not be operated between the hours of 10:00 PM and 
10:00 AM the following morning  

Sec. 6-76. Revocation. 
Every license issued by the town is subject to revocation should the licensee, directly or 

indirectly, permit the operation of any arcade jukebox, mechanical amusement device, or 
electronic or video game contrary to the provisions of this article or any ordinance or amendment 
thereto or the laws of the state. Such license may be revoked by the town council after written 
notice to the licensee, which shall specify the violations with which the licensee is charged. The 
licensee may ask for a hearing on such charge, to be held not later than ten days after notice has 
been received by the licensee. At such hearing, the licensee and/or his attorney may present and 
submit evidence and witnesses in his defense.  
DIVISION 3. REGULATIONS 

Sec. 6-92. Minors under 14; forfeiture of license. 
No person licensed by virtue of this article shall permit any jukebox, mechanical amusement 

device or electronic and video game, the use of which has been permitted under the license granted 
to him, to be used by any minor under the age of 14 years, unless accompanied by a parent. If such 
use is permitted, the person holding such license shall forfeit the license as provided in section 6-
76.  
Sec.6-92. Supervision Required. 

An arcade, whenever operated or used, shall be supervised by a responsible person eighteen 
(18) years of age or older. Such person shall enforce this chapter and ensure that the premises 
are used and operated in an orderly manner. 

Sec.6-93. Capacity, occupancy and fire regulations. 
No arcade shall be maintained, operated or conducted unless the arcade is in compliance 

with all state and local capacity, occupancy and fire regulations. 

Sec. 6-94. Sight and Sound Mitigation 
No arcade shall be operated or situated in a manner as to allow for the sound from machines 

to exceed sixty (60) dB from outside of the closed building and no machines shall be so situated 
as to be visible from outside the building or in an open-air manner. 

 
 

Page 25 of 135



Page 26 of 135



                   Edward A. Mello  
                                     Town Administrator 

MEMORANDUM TO:  Honorable Town Council   
FROM: Town Administrator, Edward A. Mello  
DATE:  July 1, 2025 
SUBJECT: Report for Town Council Meeting July 7, 2025 
 
Senior Center Project-Staff is preparing to begin the renovation project with a start of 
September 1. At that time, Molly will relocate all current services to the second floor of the golf 
course. She will also plan to utilize other Town space such as the rec center and library to avoid 
disruption to any services. She will schedule Town provided transportation for the lunch program 
as a pilot program during this period of time.  
We are working to relocate other users of the building. This includes the VFW who we plan to 
grant a secure storage area in Town Hall.  
 
Town Hall Project- The replacement of nine (9) windows in the Town Council Chambers is 
complete. We are now moving onto exterior work including repairs, power washing and 
painting. 
 
Town Welcome Signs-The Town has two “welcome” signs. One located on RT 138 East as you 
enter Jamestown and the other located at the intersection of East Shore Road and Conanicus 
Avenue. We have received a quote to replace both signs in the amount $4,900. Proofs of the 
signs are attached. I am seeking consent of the Town Council to replace both signs. (consent 
agenda) 
 
Sustainability Coordinator- We offered the position of Sustainability Coordinator to Carissa 
Mills who will be working as a contract employee for a six-month period. She is expected to start 
mid-July. This position is project based.  
 
Paving Update- DPW has been working over the past three weeks along with the paving 
contractor. Town roads north of RT 138 have been regraded and the base binder coat of asphalt 
has been applied. We will continue to work around the schedule of the contractor and likely 
move to the roads south of RT 138 in the coming weeks. 
 
Short-Term Rental- The renewal and new application portal for the 2026 STR registration 
period is now open through Open Gov. Currently both building and fire code inspections are 
required every two-years. As the result of recent communications from the State Building 
Official and a number of pending litigation matters throughout the State, I am recommending 

Town of Jamestown  
Town Administrator 

93 Narragansett Avenue 
Jamestown, Rhode Island 02835-1199 

401-423-9805      
   

Page 33 of 135



that we suspend the building code inspection portion. Each renewal or new application would be 
subject to only fire code inspection. As we move through this process, we will work to propose a 
revised ordinance to reflect changes.  
 
Streetlights- We are moving into our fourth year of a maintenance agreement for all LED 
streetlight fixtures with RISE. We have just completed the transition of 88 streetlights including 
monthly fees and maintenance to RIDOT. This leaves 300 street lights on Town owned roads. 
 
Electricity Purchase- Seeking consent from the Town Council to fully execute a purchasing 
agreement for electricity for the period of December 2025 through December 2029 at a rate of 
$0.1149/ kWh.  Our current purchase rate is $0.1264/ kWh. Energy is purchased through a 
cooperative purchasing agreement with the RI League of Cities and Towns. We use 
approximately 1,216,739 kWh annually in all Town owned facilities. (consent) 
 
Website-As previously reported, we have been working toward transitioning to a new website 
platform. This was completed on July 1. We will continue to work to improve the user 
experience. In the coming weeks, we will transition to a new platform for livestreaming and 
recording meetings using newly installed video and audio equipment. (demo) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34 of 135



 

 

 

VISION FOR FERRY TERMINAL IMPROVEMENT PROPOSAL 

 

Attached is a master vision plan for proposed ferry terminal improvements 
broken down into Phases for further discussion. 

At this time, July 2025,  we are proposing to move forward with only Phase I, the 
Ferry Fender Piling Project.     All other Phases have been included for 
informational purposes only. 

 

 

SUMMARY OF PROJECT PHASES 

PHASE I  FERRY FENDER PILING PROJECT 

PHASE II  10’ X 70’ TIMBER FLOATING DOCK PROJECT 

PHASE III  RELOCATE ELECTRICAL, WATER AND PUMP OUT PEDESTAL TO FERRY    
TERMINAL AREA, ONSITE MOVEABLE TICKET SALES OFFICE   

 

  

Page 35 of 135



CONANICUT MARINE SERVICES, INC., 

JAMESTOWN NEWPORT FERRY 

 

PROPOSAL FOR FERRY 

TERMINAL IMPROVEMENTS 

 

FERRY TERMINAL  

1 E. FERRY WHARF 

JAMESTOWN, RI   02835 

 

   

Page 36 of 135



The Jamestown Ferry Landing site is very deeply historic.   It is here, many years 
before 1873, when the first steam ferries began regular service between 
Jamestown and Newport.     Still today, this very same site offers a seasonal ferry 
service and a greeting to those arriving from the east coming from Aquidneck 
Island while providing Jamestowner’s and our neighbors to the west an easy 
access to all that Newport Harbor has to offer.   

We welcome the Town’s interests in participating in a master plan to transform 
the existing failed rubble and stone pier and adjacent terminal area into a rich 
community asset, enhancing the quality of life for Jamestowner’s and visitors 
alike.   

 

 

  

Page 37 of 135



PROPOSED PROJECTS AT FERRY LANDING IN JAMESTOWN, RI 

PHASE I - FERRY FENDER PILING PROJECT  -  To add a measure of safety to the 
Ferry slip approach we are proposing to relocate one crowding pile and install five 
new CCA fender piles along the north face of stone wharf located adjacent to the 
ferry slip.  The piles would be installed in conjunction with the Town’s proposed 
stone wharf rehab project, at the same height as the adjacent wood pile pier piles 
so as not to obstruct the view from the stone pier.    The Ferry Fender Piling 
Project would utilize DOT funding and would be completed as funding is available.  

 

PHASE II -  10’ X 70’ TIMBER FLOATING DOCK PROJECT -     
The 10’ x 70’ timber floating dock is some 60’ shorter than the previous CRMC 
permit from May 2, 2017.    The dock would be used by Jamestown Newport Ferry 
vessels to provide the public ridership on the bay and also provide additional ADA 
accessible access to the JNF vessels.   The Timber floating dock Project would 
utilize DOT funding and would be completed as funding is available.        
 

PHASE III - RELOCATE PUMP OUT PEDESTAL & INSTALL ADDITIONAL SHUT OFF 
VALVE -     Relocate the pump out pedestal from the timber pier boarding apron 
down onto the ADA concrete ferry dock adjacent to the ferry slip as per plan.  In 
addition we propose to add a shut off valve to the west of the pump out which 
could be turned off if there were a problem with the current public pumpout 
located further down the wood pile pier.   The Pump Out Relocation Project 
would utilize DOT funding and would be completed as funding is available.  

 

PHASE III - PROVIDE DEDICATED ELECTRICAL SERVICE TO FERRY TERMINAL   -   
Install power pedestals on the ADA concrete ferry dock.   Install two (2)  50/50 
power pedestals at locations per plan.   Coordinate the feed wiring from the 
breaker panel in pump house through new conduits in stone wharf during Town 
reconstruction.    Install one (1) pile mount power pedestal on boarding apron as 
located on plan.  Feed wiring from breaker panel through new conduits in stone 
wharf during Town reconstruction.   Note:  This would be subject to the electrical 
engineering plan. The Electrical Service Upgrade Project would utilize DOT funding 
and would be completed as funding is available.  

Page 38 of 135



PHASE III - INSTALL DEDICATED WATER SERVICE TO FERRY TERMINAL AREA.  
Install a feed line from adjacent water pit to two pedestals on the concrete ADA 
ferry dock via conduit in stone wharf during Town reconstruction.   The Dedicated 
Water Service  Project  would utilize DOT funding and would be completed as 
funding is available.  

 

 

PHASE III - ONSITE MOVEABLE TICKET SALES OFFICE 

Approx. 12’6” x 4’ ferry ticket sales office/Ferry Site Manager Office to be built on 
a moveable “pallet style” foundation due to the weather conditions that occur in 
that area.    It is proposed to locate the ticket sales/Ferry Site Manager office 
straddled between the ferry boarding apron and the stone wharf.  The 
construction of the On Site Moveable Ticket Sales Office would be completed 
using private CMS Funds.    

 

 

 

As a RI Public Utility License Holder, Conanicut Marine Services, Inc./Jamestown 
Newport Ferry, completes a lengthy bi-annual ferry operations survey, U.S. DOT 
National Census of Ferry Operators (NCFO), and upon completion is eligible for 
DOT ferry grant monies.  Funding is quite limited and any project decided on 
requires extensive matching funds from the applicant.    At this time, limited DOT 
funding is available of approximately $10,000.00 per year.    As additional funding 
from the DOT BIG Ferry Grant or other resources would become available we 
could look into completing additional projects on the vision.  These grant monies 
can be spent on any of the 5 public landing sites that the JNF currently services 
although the Jamestown landing site needs the most attention.     

 

Page 39 of 135



While it is understood that due to funding limitations not all projects can be 
completed at once we have therefore attached a draft proposal of a master 
vision for the Jamestown Ferry area. 

  

Page 40 of 135



PHASE I - PROPOSED INSTALLATION OF 5 CCA TIMBER FENDER 
PILINGS AND RELOCATION OF 1 EXISTING PILING 

 

 
 

 

PHASE I -   TIMBER FENDER PILING  PROJECT 

Page 41 of 135



 

 

 

  

PHASE I -   TIMBER FENDER PILING  PROJECT 

 

Page 42 of 135



 

 

PHASE I -   TIMBER FENDER PILING  PROJECT 

 

Page 43 of 135



PHASE I -    TIMBER FENDER PILING PROJECT

  

Page 44 of 135



PHASE I -   TIMBER FENDER PILING PROJECT QUOTATION 

 

Page 45 of 135



PHASE II -  10’ X 70’ TIMBER FLOATING DOCK PROJECT     

 

NOTE:    10’ X 70’ TIMBER FLOATING DOCK PRICING ESTIMATE NOT AVAILABLE 
AT THIS TIME 

Page 46 of 135



 

 

PHASE III - RELOCATE PUMP OUT PEDESTAL FROM TRIANGLE 
BESIDE THE  WOOD PILE PIER TO CONCRETE ADA FERRY DOCK 
& INSTALL AN ADDITIONAL SHUT OFF VALVE ON THE EXISTING 

LINE ON THE WOOD PILE PIER  
 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 47 of 135



PHASE III - RELOCATE PUMP OUT PEDESTAL & INSTALL ADDITIONAL SHUT OFF VALVE PROJECT 

To be done in conjunction with Town of Jamestown –  We estimate $5,000.00 

Page 48 of 135



 

 

PHASE III - INSTALL METERED ELECTRICAL SERVICE FROM 
PUMPOUT SHED TO PEDESTAL ON WOOD PILE PIER  TRIANGLE 

AREA USING ONE  PILING MOUNTED BAYSIDE 50/50 AMP 
PEDESTAL & INSTALL (2) HARBOR LIGHT 50/50 AMP 

PEDESTALS ON THE CONCRETE ADA FERRY DOCK 

Page 49 of 135



PHASE III – METERED ELECTRICAL SERVICE TO CONCRETE ADA FERRY 
DOCK 

 

Page 50 of 135



PHASE III -   ESIMTATE FOR POWER PEDESTALS   

 

Page 51 of 135



PHASE III -   ESIMTATE FOR POWER PEDESTALS   

 

Page 52 of 135



 

 

PHASE III -   50 AMP ELECTRICAL SERVICE 
 

NOTE:    BRITTAIN ELECTRIC ESTIMATE FOR ELECTRICAL WORK 

NOT AVAILABLE AT THIS TIME 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 53 of 135



 

PHASE III - INSTALL WATER LINE TO PUMPOUT SHED & 
METERED WATER SERVICE TO (2) HARBOR LIGHT 50/50 AMP 
WITH WATER CONNCECTIONS ON THE CONCRETE ADA FERRY 

DOCK 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 54 of 135



PHASE III -   INSTALL  WATER LINE TO CONCRETE ADA DOCK

ESTIMATE FOR DEDICATED WATER SERVICE PROJECT - To be done in conjunction 
with Town of Jamestown –  We estimate $5,000.00 

Page 55 of 135



PHASE III - ONSITE MOVEABLE TICKET SALES OFFICE 

 

Approx. 12’6” x 4’ ferry ticket sales office/Ferry Site Manager Office to be built on 
a moveable “pallet style” foundation due to the weather conditions that occur in 
that area.     

 

 

 

 
 

  

Page 56 of 135



PHASE III -  PROPOSED MOVEABLE FERRY TICKET SALES/FERRY SITE MANAGER 
OFFICE  LOCATION ON WOODEN TRIANGLE AREA ADJACENT TO FERRY 

TERMINAL AREA.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 57 of 135



PHASE III -   PROPOSED MOVEABLE FERRY TICKET SALES/FERRY SITE MANAGER 
OFFICE –    

FRONT VIEW  

NOTE:   SIMILAR IN STYLE AS TO BE CONSTRUCTED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 58 of 135



PHASE III -  PROPOSED MOVEABLE FERRY TICKET SALES/FERRY SITE MANAGER 
OFFICE – 

SIDE VIEW  

NOTE:   SIMILAR IN STYLE AS TO BE CONSTRUCTED 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 59 of 135



PHASE III -  PROPOSED  MOVEABLE FERRY TICKET SALES/FERRY SITE MANAGER 
OFFICE –  

SIDE VIEW  

NOTE:  SIMILAR IN STYLE AS TO BE CONSTRUCTED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 60 of 135



PHASE III -  MOVEABLE TICKET BOOTH SHOWING FRONT AND SIDE ELEVATIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 61 of 135



PHASE III -  MOVEABLE TICKET BOOTH SHOWING SIDE AND REAR ELEVATIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE:   DUE TO PLACEMENT OF TICKET BOOTH THE EAST SIDE TICKET BOOTH DOOR WOULD 
BE CHANGED TO A WINDOW.    

  

  

Page 62 of 135



PHASE III -  MOVEABLE TICKET BOOTH SHOWING MEASUREMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 63 of 135



PHASE III -  MOVEABLE TICKET BOOTH SHOWING ADA ACCESSIBILITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64 of 135



 

FERRY TERMINAL PROPOSAL TERM SHEET 

 

CMS agrees to provide any additional funding not covered by DOT grant for the 
Fender Pile project. 

 

CMS agrees to provide personal funding for the Onsite Moveable Ticket Booth. 

 

CMS and Town of Jamestown will agree on specific leasing terms for the land 
based removable ticket booth at the time the Ticket Booth Project is completed. 

 

CMS and Town of Jamestown will agree on adjusted rate for Ferry Terminal User 
Agreement as phases above are completed.      

 

The Town may want to participate along with CMS and DOT on the funding of 
future Phases as they are public assets.    

 

 

Page 65 of 135



Page 66 of 135



Page 67 of 135



Page 68 of 135



04-16-2025 Minutes v2 - Approved  Page 1 of 2 
 

JAMESTOWN BOARD OF CANVASSERS MEETING MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 16, 2025 

2:30 P.M. 
I. CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL 
A meeting of the Board of Canvassers was called to order at 2:39 P.M. at 93 Narragansett Ave in the Rosamond A. Tefft 
Council Chambers. Board of Canvassers Members present were as follows: Mr. Kenneth Newman, Ms. Daphne Meredith, 
Ms. Jennifer Thran, and Ms. Laura Goldstein. Absent from the meeting was Mr. Hugh Murphy. 
 
Also in attendance was Keith Ford, Deputy Town Clerk/Clerk to the Board of Canvassers.  
 
II.  MINUTES 

A) Approval of Minutes; Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: 
1) Board of Canvassers meeting of March 26, 2025. 

Mr. Newman opened the agenda item for the above minutes. Ms. Meredith made a motion to accept the meeting 
minutes as presented with a second by Ms. Thran. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye; Ms. Thran, Aye. Vote 
Passed unanimously. 
 
III. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Issues with Political Signage around Jamestown. 
Mr. Newman opened the agenda item of the appointments to the Jamestown Elections Training and Advisory 
Committee and commented that it has been difficult to find interested individuals for the committee and also to adhere 
to the bipartisan requirement. This comes about from an informational meeting held prior to the November 5 General 
Election with Town Administrator (TA) Mello regarding signage regulations, who residents can make complaints to and 
how they are handled as well as where property lines, easements and state vs town roadways are determined. Mr. Ford 
commented that going forward the TA’s suggestion was to look into the sign ordinance, and see if a change is needed 
and moving forward from there. Ms. Meredith commented that we should be careful with this issue as we could 
interfere with the first amendment very easily. Mr. Ford commented that we should work with the planning department 
on any future research and potential changes as well as the Town Solicitors. Ms. Meredith commented that the Board 
should first educate ourselves and the electorate of the current ordinance and the current limitations. Then proceed 
with the enforcement part. A Discussion Ensued. Ms. Meredith made a motion for the Board of Canvassers to begin 
research Article 13- Signage, of the Jamestown Code of Ordinance to make recommendations to make amendments to 
the ordinance with a second from Ms. Thran. Ms. Thran commented that there is a timeline within the ordinance 
specifically for political signs also specifically verbiage to size as well. A Discussion ensued. Mr. Newman called for a vote 
on the standing motion. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye; and Ms. Thran, Aye. Vote Passed unanimously. 

B) Review, Discussion, and/or Action, and/or Vote: Board of Canvassers Liaison to the Elections Training 
and Advisory Committee. 

Mr. Newman opened the agenda item commenting that without a standing committee due to lack of a quorum that the 
Board should take the role of the committee until one is made. Ms. Meredith moved to table further discussion/vote 
until there is a duly constituted Elections Training and Advisory Committee with a second by Ms. Thran. Vote: Mr. 
Newman, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye; and Ms. Thran, Aye. Vote Passed unanimously. 

IV.  NEW BUSINESS 
A) Review, Discussion, and/or Action, and/or Vote: Financial Town Meeting (FTM) to be held on Monday, 

June 2, 2025. 
Mr. Ford commented that as for the measures of the FTM, he has requested voting equipment from the Board of 
Elections including two (2) DS-200’s, four to six (4-6) Poll Pads, fifteen hundred (1,500) yes/no ballots, one (1) express 
vote, eight (8) privacy booths including a handicap accessibly, and bracelets to identify voters vs non-voters. The 
capacity of the gymnasium is 440 seated individuals, and when two (2) fire marshals are present that number can 
increase to 700. He has confirmed with Chief Tighe that they will be on location. If need be, the cafeteria can hold an 
addition 140 individuals with audio and video capability. Mr. Ford moved on to the procedures of the FTM. A Discussion 

Page 69 of 135



04-16-2025 Minutes v2 - Approved  Page 2 of 2 
 

Ensued. Mr. Newman commented that the Board should sit down with the editor of the Jamestown Press regarding the 
procedures of the FTM. A Discussion Ensued. No Vote/Action Taken.  

B) Review, Discussion, and/or Action, and/or Vote: Presentation to the Board of Elections and/or 
Department of State regarding the Elections Training and advisory Committee’s findings and 
recommendations.  

Mr. Newman opened the agenda item and Ms. Meredith made a motion that the Board of Canvassers present the 
findings of the Elections Training and Advisory Committee to the Board of Elections and the Secretary of States’ Office 
with a second from Ms. Thran. Ms. Thran inquired about a timeframe for the presentation.  A Discussion ensued. Mr. 
Newman after discussion called for a vote. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye; and Ms. Thran, Aye. Vote Passed 
unanimously. Ms. Thran commented that for a date of the presentation, it should be after the FTM. Mr. Newman 
commented that the June meeting may be a good date. Mr. Ford will reach out to both offices and invite them for the 
presentation.  
 
IV. OPEN FORUM 
Mr. Ford commented that the May 8th meeting will have the previous meeting minutes, approval of non-voters from the 
Town and School Department attending the FTM, as well as the Final Canvass for the FTM. 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Murphy made a motion to adjourn with a second by Ms. Meredith. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye; and 
Ms. Thran, Aye. Vote Passed unanimously.  Meeting was adjourned at 3:24 P.M. 
 
 
 
Attest: 

 
Keith Ford 
Deputy Town Clerk/Clerk to the Board of Canvassers 
 
CC:   Town Council Members (5) 

Board of Canvassers (5) 
        Roberta Fagan, Town Clerk 

Page 70 of 135



04-30-2025 Minutes v204-30-2025 Minutes v2  Page 1 of 2 
 

JAMESTOWN BOARD OF CANVASSERS MEETING MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 30, 2025 

2:30 P.M. 
I. CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL 
A meeting of the Jamestown Board of Canvassers was held on March 3, 2025 and was called to order by Chairman Kenneth 
Newman at 2:37 P.M., at 93 Narragansett Ave in the Rosamond A. Tefft Council Chambers. Board of Canvassers Members 
present were as follows: Mr. Kenneth Newman, Mr. Hugh Murphy, Ms. Daphne Meredith, Ms. Jennifer Thran, and Ms. 
Laura Goldstein. 
 
Also in attendance: Town Administrator Edward Mello, Finance Director Christina Collins, Town Clerk Roberta Fagan and 
Deputy Town Clerk/Clerk to the Board of Canvassers Keith Ford.  
 
II.  MINUTES 

A) Approval of Minutes; Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: 
1) Board of Canvassers meeting of April 16, 2025. 

Mr. Newman opened the agenda item for the above minutes. Ms. Meredith made a motion to accept the meeting 
minutes as amended with a second by Mr. Murphy. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Mr. Murphy, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye. Vote 
Passed unanimously. 
 
III. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Financial Town Meeting (FTM) to be held on Monday, 
June 2, 2025. 

Mr. Newman opened the agenda item of the FTM. Town Administrator (TA) Mello remarked that the FTM is run by the 
Town Moderator (TM) Dennis Webster and he is responsible for the overall management of the meeting. Town staff and 
Board of Canvassers have a significant amount of involvement in the FTM and planning talks have already begun with 
the TM. The last day to register to vote has been advertised and is May 3rd, with Town Hall being open from 1:00 P.M. 
until 4:00 P.M. TA Mello outlined the procedures of the FTM as well as some of the planning that the town staff has 
begun. As of right now we have nine questions that voters will be voting on; questions one through four will be the 
Town Budget and related questions for the yearly operation of the town. Questions five through nine will be the bond 
questions. Mr. Ford is in the process of drafting up a single ballot that will cover all questions so that voters will only 
have to vote once. TA Mello commented that the Town will be providing a FTM booklet that will be published and 
delivered with the Jamestown Press. In this booklet there will be a description of the town operating budget and bond 
questions to help inform voters. One week before the FTM, a dedicated informational advertisement will be published 
detailing the bond questions and their intended uses, ensuring voters are as informed as possible 

Mr. Newman commented that this will take on the appearance of an election but will not be a Title 17 election. This is 
the Financial Town Meeting which is run by the Town Moderator and is governed by town ordinance. The Board of 
Canvassers will be serving at the pleasure of the Town, and has been invited to help with the vote.    

Mr. Newman inquired as to how many sessions has the town had to discuss the budget and bonds. TA Mello 
commented there has been five public discussions on the operating budget, capital budget, and bond questions which 
have just been finalized by the Town Council. TA Mello reiterated the process that the town will take for advertisements 
and education of voters. A Discussion Ensued. Ms. Meredith commented that the Board’s mission here should be voter 
education and to create a efficient process for voters. All nine questions on the ballot may make for confusion if not all 
the questions go to a paper ballot, but this is the correct way to proceed for cost savings and efficiency. TA Mello noted 
that we will be publishing a sample ballot as well for voters, and will have materials available and posted for voters to 
educate themselves. Ms. Thran inquired about if a voter was to make a motion to increase or reduce the budget during 
the meeting. TA Mello commented that a notice of intention amendment is required for any increase or reduction of 
more than $10,000 which is due by May 13th. This should allow us time to make adjustments to the ballot. Any motion to 

Page 71 of 135



04-30-2025 Minutes v204-30-2025 Minutes v2  Page 2 of 2 
 

increase or reduce the budget by $9,999 or less can be made at the meeting and the town will be prepared for this by 
having additional voting equipment and yes/no ballots available on site to use. A Discussion Ensued. 

TM Webster commented that if a motion on the floor was made for a paper ballot, he would not entertain a voice vote 
and will be calling for a hand or standing vote for the count to have an accurate count. In the past the Board and town 
staff would count the vote and report the numbers to him and the Town Clerk. A Lengthy Discussion Ensued. 

Mr. Newman asked for an agenda item be added for the May 8th meeting regarding the Board recommending to TM 
Webster that the electorate vote on a combined budget, town and school department, in on vote not separately. Mr. 
Ford will add that to the next agenda. 

Jamestown Press Editor Tim Reil commented that this Board meeting will be in next weeks papers, the following week 
will be the budget book, and then he will be having a feature article before the FTM. All letters to the editor are 
forwarded to the publisher, Robert Berczuk who decides which to publish.  

Ms. Thran inquired as to if the Board receives communications from voters what steps should they take. Town Clerk 
Fagan commented that letters addressed to the Board should be forwarded to Mr. Ford. He can place them on an 
agenda, under communications item so that these communications can be distributed to the Board. If a Board member 
would like to then take up the issue it can be placed on a future agenda.  

 IV. OPEN FORUM 
Mr. Newman inquired about future agenda items. Mr. Ford commented that he has been asked by individual Board 
members to add, the Board of Elections request for support letters for budgeting approval for the replacement of poll 
pads, for a poll worker appreciation event, and the recommendation of passing the operating budget with only one vote 
and unfinished business of political signage in Jamestown. Which will be placed on the May 8th meeting agenda. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
Ms. Meredith made a motion to adjourn with a second by Mr. Murphy. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Mr. Murphy, Aye; Ms. 
Meredith, Aye. Vote Passed unanimously.  Meeting was adjourned at 3:41 P.M. 
 
 
 
Attest: 

 
Keith Ford 
Deputy Town Clerk/Clerk to the Board of Canvassers 
 
CC:   Town Council Members (5) 

Board of Canvassers (5) 
        Roberta Fagan, Town Clerk 

Page 72 of 135



 
 

 
 

JAMESTOWN BOARD OF CANVASSERS DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
THURSDAY, MAY 8, 2025 

2:30 P.M. 
I. CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL 
A meeting of the Jamestown Board of Canvassers was held on May 8, 2025 and was called to order by Chairman Kenneth 
Newman at 2:35 P.M., at 93 Narragansett Ave in the Rosamond A. Tefft Council Chambers. Board of Canvassers Members 
present were as follows: Mr. Kenneth Newman, Ms. Daphne Meredith, Ms. Jennifer Thran, and Ms. Laura Goldstein. 
Absent was: Mr. Hugh Murphy. 
 
Also in attendance: Deputy Town Clerk/Clerk to the Board of Canvassers Keith Ford.  
 
II.  MINUTES 

A) Approval of Minutes; Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: 
1) Board of Canvassers meeting of April 30, 2025. 

Mr. Newman opened the agenda item for the above minutes. Ms. Thran made a motion to accept the meeting minutes 
as amended with a second by Ms. Meredith. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye; Ms. Thran, Aye. Vote Passed 
unanimously. 
 
III. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Issues with Political Signage around Jamestown. 
Mr. Newman opened the agenda item of political signage around Jamestown.  Ms. Meredith commented that she has 
done research in to the ordinance and the way that it reads is spot on without encroaching on or regulating the content 
of the sign. It does treat political signage the same as all other regulations. She did recommend if there is a question on 
signage or issue with signs on their own property, the ordinance does not clarify who to contact. Mr. Ford commented 
that in the ordinance it does state it is under the purview of the building and zoning official. A Discussion Ensued. Mr. 
Newman inquired as to what is the process of changing town ordinances. Mr. Ford commented that it would involve 
research, public workshops, advertisements and then a vote by the Town Council. He also commented that we should 
speak with the Planning Department regarding any proposed changes as well as the Town Solicitor(s) with any 
proposals.  Ms. Meredith commented that any proposed changes should be in general nature and apply to all signs. 
Currently the ordinance for political signage is that it cannot be displayed in excess of 120 days prior to the event and 
shall be removed within seven days after the event. Mr. Newman commented that he would like to have this ordinance 
clarified for the electorate. He would like to set a date to have a discussion with the Town Solicitor and Planner 
regarding ordinance changes process and potential changes. Mr. Ford will invite them both to our July 23rd meeting. No 
Action/Vote Taken.    

IV. NEW BUSINESS 
A) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Financial Town Meeting to be held on Monday, June 2, 

2025. 
Mr. Newman opened the agenda item of the Financial Town Meeting and the request for permission for non-Jamestown 
voters to attend the FTM. Mr. Ford commented that Town Clerk Roberta Fagan and Superintendent David Raleigh 
submitted lists to him requesting for special permission for the individuals listed to attend the meeting. These individuals 
are town and school staff members. This permission would allow them to be at the meeting but not participate in voting, 
they will be signed in and given non-voter bracelets to identify them. Ms. Meredith made a motion to approve the request 
for permission for non-Jamestown voters to attend the Financial Town Meeting in letters submitted to Mr. Ford by both 
the town and school department with a second by Ms. Thran. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye; Ms. Thran, 
Aye. Vote Passed unanimously. 
 

Page 73 of 135



 
 

 
 

Mr. Newman opened the agenda item of the recommendation to the Town Moderator to ask for one motion to pass the 
general operating budget and the school department budget combined. Mr. Ford commented that the Town has discussed 
with the Town Moderator having a vote for the town operating budget and the school department budget as one item. 
This is due to the fact the school budget is a line item of the town budget they are not separate. In the past we have had 
a vote for the town budget, a separate vote for the school department budget, then a third for passing of the combined 
budgets. This could make for issues if one is passed and the other is not. Which is why the town has moved to simplify the 
process. A Discussion Ensued. Ms. Thran made a motion to recommend to the Town Moderator to have a single vote for 
the town budget and the school budget with a second by Ms. Meredith. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye; Ms. 
Thran, Aye. Vote Passed unanimously. 
 
Ms. Meredith made a motion to move agenda item C) (State Funding of Poll Pads for the Board of Elections) and D) 
(Review, Discussion, and/or Action, and/or Vote: A Poll Worker Appreciation Event) to be heard prior to agenda item B) 
with a second by Ms. Thran. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye; Ms. Thran, Aye. Vote Passed unanimously. 
 

C) Review, Discussion, and/or Action, and/or Vote: Letter of Support regarding State Funding of Poll Pads for 
the Board of Elections (BOE). 

Mr. Newman opened the agenda item of a letter of support regarding the state funding of poll pads for the BOE. Ms. 
Meredith commented that the BOE has notified election officials that the state has removed funding for the replacement 
of poll pads. The BOE has asked for letters of support to for this budget item. Without the replacement poll pads we could 
be forced to go back to paper poll books. Mr. Ford commented that the poll pads have critical security updates from the 
manufacturer for 7 years and many of the poll pads used are at the end of that time. The BOE has asked for $200,000 to 
for the replacement of 900 during FY26/27. A Discussion Ensued. Ms. Thran made a motion that the Board send a letter 
of support to the Governor, House Finance Committee, and the Senate Finance Committee with a second by Ms. Meredith. 
Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye; Ms. Thran, Aye. Vote Passed unanimously. Mr. Ford will draft and send the 
letter on behalf of the Board.  
 
 D) Review, Discussion, and/or Action, and/or Vote: A Poll Worker Appreciation Event. 
Mr. Newman opened the agenda item of a poll worker appreciation event. Ms. Meredith commented that we have great 
poll workers, some who come year after year that have been doing so for many years. We also have many new poll workers 
who have recently joined and we want to send our appreciation to all the poll workers we have. Also use this to answer 
any questions they may have. A Discussion ensued. Mr. Ford commented that our monthly meeting is September 17th. Ms. 
Thran commented this could be a potluck type luncheon. Ms. Meredith made a motion to have a poll worker appreciation 
event on September 17th prior to our Board meeting at 2:30 P.M. with a second by Ms. Thran. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; 
Ms. Meredith, Aye; Ms. Thran, Aye. Vote Passed unanimously. 
 

B) Review, Discussion, and/or Action, and/or Vote: The Town Final Canvass, to correct the voting list for the 
Financial Town Meeting to be held on June 3, 2025. 

Mr. Newman opened the agenda item for the Final Canvass. Mr. Ford presented the Board the Final Canvass list of voters. 
The Board reviewed the list. Ms. Meredith made a motion to approve and certify the Final Canvass List with a second by 
Ms. Thran. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye; Ms. Thran, Aye. Vote Passed unanimously. 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT 
Ms. Meredith made a motion to adjourn with a second by Ms. Thran. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Ms. Meredith, Aye; Ms. 
Thran, Aye. Vote Passed unanimously. Meeting was adjourned at 5:14 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74 of 135



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 

 
Keith Ford 
Deputy Town Clerk/Clerk to the Board of Canvassers 
 
CC:   Town Council Members (5) 

Board of Canvassers (5) 
        Roberta Fagan, Town Clerk 
 

Page 75 of 135



JAMESTOWN BOARD OF CANVASSERS MEETING MINUTES 
MONDAY, JUNE 2, 2025 

7:00 P.M. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL 
A meeting of the Board of Canvassers was called to order at 5:30 P.M. at 55 Lawn Avenue, the Jamestown School 
Gymnasium. Board of Canvassers Members present were as follows: Mr. Kenneth Newman, Mr. Hugh Murphy, Ms. 
Daphne Meredith, Ms. Jennifer Thran and Ms. Laura Goldstein. 
 
Also in attendance was Keith Ford, Deputy Town Clerk/Clerk to the Board of Canvassers. 
 

II. NEW BUSINESS 
A)  Board of Canvassers in session for the 2025 Financial Town Meeting to handle any Election Matters. 

 
No meeting minutes were taken during this time. All Board of Canvassers were present at the Jamestown School for 
the duration of the meeting.  
 

III. ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Murphy made a motion to adjourn with a second by Ms. Meredith. Vote: Mr. Newman, Aye; Mr. Murphy, Aye; 
Ms. Meredith, Aye. Vote Passed Unanimously. Meeting was adjourned at 11:57 P.M. 

 

 

Attest: 

 
Keith Ford 
Deputy Town Clerk/Clerk to the Board of Canvassers 
 
Cc:   Town Council Members (5) 

Board of Canvassers (5) 
        Roberta Fagan, Town Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 76 of 135



Page 77 of 135



Page 78 of 135



Page 79 of 135



Page 80 of 135



Page 81 of 135



Page 82 of 135



Page 83 of 135



JAMESTOWN HOUSING AUTHORITY  
Board of Commissioners   

Wednesday, April 9, 2025, Meeting Minutes   
   
The Commissioners of the Jamestown Housing Authority met in session at 9:15 a.m. on April 9, 2025.
The members were able to declare a quorum.    

   
CALL TO ORDER 9:30 a.m.; ROLL CALL by Executive Director Nikki Vazquez    
Chairwoman Lisa Rafferty – Present    
Commissioner Susan Romano –Present
Commissioner Bob Plain – Absent
Commissioner Gerald Precious - Present

 
 

   
Also in Attendance: Nikki Vazquez- Executive Director, Bethany Hashway,
   
Public Present: No members of the public were present at this meeting.

Approval of Minutes  
Motion made by Vice Chair Romano to approve the minutes of the meeting held on March 27, 2025.
This motion was seconded by Commissioner Precious and unanimously passed.   

Communications
Motion made by Commissioner Precious to approve Communications. The motion was seconded by Vice
Chair Romano and unanimously passed.

Friends of Jamestown Housing  
A motion was made by Vice Chair Romano to approve the Friends of Jamestown Housing report. This
motion was seconded by Commissioner Precious and unanimously passed. Feather the Nest Fundraiser
will be held on April 28, 2025, at BEECH Restaurant.

Executive Director Report 
Motion made by Commissioner Precious to approve the Executive Director’s Report. This motion was
seconded by Vice Chair Romano and unanimously passed.

By-Laws
Motion made by Vice-Chair Romano to approve the By-Laws. This motion was seconded by
Commissioner Precious and unanimously passed.

FY 2025 Income Limits Documentation
Motion made by Vice Chair Romano to approve the HUD FY 2025 Income Limits. This motion was
seconded by Commissioner Precious and unanimously passed.

FY 2025 Capital Fund Resolution 04092025
 Motion made by Commissioner Precious to approve the FY 2025 Capital Fund Resolution. This motion

was seconded by Vice Chair Romano and unanimously approved.

5 Year and Annual Plan 04092025



Motion was made by Commissioner Precious to approve the 5 Year and Annual Plan. This motion was
seconded by Vice Chair Romano and unanimously passed.  

RFQ #2025 1 Request for Qualifications: Public Housing Repositioning CO- Develop-Partner-
Motion was made by Vice Chair Romano to approve the solicitation for a Co -developer Partner. This
motion was seconded by Commissioner Precious and unanimously passed.  

Action Item  
Motion was made by Vice Chair Romano to approve the March 2025 bills. This motion was seconded by
Commissioner Precious and unanimously passed.    

Commissioner Reports and Requests -
 Chairwoman Rafferty reported that a Jamestown resident will be interviewed by the Town Council to fill

the vacant Board seat.

Public Comment – No public comment

A motion was made by Commissioner Precious to go into the Executive Session. This motion was
seconded by Vice Chair Romano and unanimously passed.

Executive Closed Session in accordance with RIGL 42-46 -5 (a) (1) Personnel – Executive Director
Performance Review. 

A motion made by Vice Chair Romano to sign and seal the minutes of the closed session. This motion
was seconded by Commissioner Precious and unanimously passed.

During the closed session no votes were taken.

A motion to return to the meeting was made by Vice Chair Romano and seconded by Commissioner
Precious, unanimously carried.

A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Vice Chair Romano, this motion was seconded by
Commissioner Precious and unanimously carried.

 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:15 a.m.



JAMESTOWN HOUSING AUTHORITY  
Board of Commissioners   

Friday, May 9, 2025, Meeting Minutes   
   
The Commissioners of the Jamestown Housing Authority met in session at 9:00 a.m. on May 9, 2025.
The members were able to declare a quorum.    

   
CALL TO ORDER 9:00 a.m.; ROLL CALL by Executive Director Nikki Vazquez    
Chairwoman Lisa Rafferty – Present    
Commissioner Susan Romano –Present
Commissioner Bob Plain – Absent
Commissioner Gerald Precious - Present

 
 

   
Also in Attendance: Nikki Vazquez- Executive Director, Bethany Hashway, Lousie Marcus Esq.
   
Public Present: No members of the public were present at this meeting.

Approval of Minutes  
Motion made by Vice Chair Romano to approve the minutes of the meeting held on April 9, 2025. This
motion was seconded by Commissioner Precious and unanimously passed.   

Communications
Motion made by Commissioner Precious to approve Communications. The motion was seconded by Vice
Chair Romano and unanimously passed.

Friends of Jamestown Housing  
A motion was made by Commissioner Precious to approve the Friends of Jamestown Housing report
which included positive reviews of the Second Annual Feather the Nest Fundraiser at BEECH, with
thanks to the committee and BEECH staff and owners, making it possible to raise approximately $11,000
in one night. This motion was seconded by Vice Chair Romano and unanimously passed.

Executive Director Report 
Motion made by Vice Chair Romano to approve the Executive Director’s Report. This motion was
seconded by Commissioner Precious and unanimously passed.

FY 2025 Budget Resolution 05072025
Motion was made by Commissioner Precious to approve the Budget Resolution. This motion was
seconded by Vice Chair Romano and unanimously passed.  

Commissioner Reports and Requests -
 Vice Chair Romano mentioned that COAST came to JHA campus on Saturday and participated in an

event to outreach and visit eaach resident to let them know about the services COAST offers.

Public Comment – No public comment

A motion was made by Commissioner Precious to go into the Executive Session. This motion was
seconded by Vice Chair Romano and unanimously passed.



Executive Closed Session in accordance with RIGL 42-46 -5 (a) (1) Personnel – Executive Director
Performance Review. 

A motion made by Commissioner Precious to sign and seal the minutes of the closed session. This
motion was seconded by Vice Chair Romano and unanimously passed.

During the closed session no votes were taken.

A motion to return to the meeting was made by Commissioner Precious and seconded by Vice Chair
Romano, unanimously carried.

A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Vice Chair Romano, this motion was seconded by
Commissioner Precious and unanimously carried.

 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:20 a.m.



JAMESTOWN HOUSING AUTHORITY  
Board of Commissioners Special Meeting   

Wednesday, May 14, 2025, Meeting Minutes   
   
The Commissioners of the Jamestown Housing Authority met in a special session at 9:00 a.m. on May
14, 2025. The members were able to declare a quorum.    

   
CALL TO ORDER 9:02 a.m.; ROLL CALL by Chair Lisa Rafferty 
Chairwoman Lisa Rafferty – Present    
Vice Chair Susan Romano –Present
Commissioner Gerald Precious - Present

 
 

Motion was made by Vice Chair Romano to go into the Executive Session. This motion was seconded by
Commissioner Precious and unanimously passed.

Executive Closed Session in accordance with RIGL 42-46 -5 (a) (1) Personnel – Executive Director
Performance Review. 

A motion made by Commissioner Precious to sign and seal the minutes of the closed session. This
motion was seconded by Vice Chair Romano and unanimously passed.

During the closed session there was a motion to approve the Executive Director’s Performance Review
and renew contract.

A motion to return to the meeting was made by Vice Chair Romano and seconded by Commissioner
Precious, unanimously carried.

A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Vice Chair Romano, this motion was seconded by
Commissioner Precious and unanimously carried.

 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:16 a.m.



Page 89 of 135



Page 90 of 135



Page 105 of 135



Page 106 of 135



Page 107 of 135



Page 108 of 135



Page 109 of 135



Page 110 of 135



Page 111 of 135



CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Jamestown email system. Please do
not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and determine the
content is safe.

From:
To: Roberta Fagan
Cc: Chief James Campbell; Raymond DeFalco; Edward Mello; 
Subject: Re: Head"s Beach Dog Rule infractions
Date: Friday, June 13, 2025 4:46:24 PM


Hi Roberta,
Could you please pass my letter to the Town Council?  I don’t have their email addresses.  

Thank you

To: Jamestown Town Council, Town Administrator, Chief of Police and Recreation Director,

It was last year that I reached out to you all regarding an ongoing problem with dog owners
violating the ordinance regarding dogs at Heads’s Beach.  In my letter to the Council, I
mentioned my family’s issues with dogs on Head’s Beach and I vented my frustration. Here
we are a year later and beach is over-run with dog owners violating the ordinance. Last year I
mentioned my (now) 3 year old daughter’s fear with dogs due to multiple incidents with off-
leash dogs invading her personal space while she was sitting and playing on the beach. The
dog issue at the beach has taken a toll on her. She is terrified of dogs, scared to go to Head’s
Beach and the sight of a dog, even leashed, now scares her.  I’m writing again to ask for
stronger measures to ensure the ordinance regarding dogs on the beach is being followed. 

There is a general lack of understanding of the ordinance both on the public’s part and the
police department’s part. The majority of the public who bring their dogs onto the beach walk
right by the posted sign. There is confusion over the wording of the ordinance. We are asking
the public to know where the middle Jetty is (which is covered by water completely at high
tides and also assumes the public at-large knows what a jetty is) and delineate which way is
north.  The wording posted on the sign at Head’s Beach is taken directly from the ordinance
but may not be clear.  I also feel some people are innocently misinterpreting the ordinance.
Unfortunately, not all the infractions are innocent misunderstandings.  We have some
neighbors in the Shores who blatantly disregard the rules and use the beach as their own pet-
potty.  

The suggestion that was made to me last year was to call the police when I witnessed a dog
infraction at the beach. So we did. Calling the police lead me to realize quickly that the
dispatchers as well as some of the officers who responded did not understand the ordinance as
it is written either.  I have also witnessed multiple police patrols drive by the beach while dog
owners, in violation of the ordinance were in plain sight.  This morning I drove by the beach
with a dog owner and their dog in violation of the ordinance and a police officer parked at the
beach looking on.  Why was the ordinance important enough for the town council to make but
not important enough for the Police to enforce?   Council Members, are you ok with police
officers picking and choosing what town ordinances to enforce?

I believe we need some stronger enforcement measures at Head’s Beach. Better signage may
help. There are multiple ways to enter the beach and two signs that are not visible from every

Page 112 of 135

mailto:jpcampbell@jamestownri.net
mailto:rdefalco@jamestownri.net
mailto:emello@jamestownri.net


entry point. More signage with more concise verbiage i.e. “no dogs beyond this point…”
 might help make people aware of the proper areas for dogs.  Better policing of the beach
would help make people aware and held accountable for violations of the ordinance. Patrolling
the beach should be prioritized. Much of the beach is not visible from the road. Perhaps it’s
time to start fining people who break the ordinance.  

I know fines may seem extreme but there is a larger health issue here.  People bring their dogs
onto the beach and the result is people sunbathing, playing and swimming on a small stretch of
beach where dogs are defecating and urinating.  Dog feces can harbor viruses, parasites and
harmful bacteria. I’ve mentioned in my previous email, it is very common to find dog poop on
the beach and this year is no different. I noticed this year we installed new signs regarding the
parking restrictions at Heads Beach.  The new signs are numerous, easy to see and are very
clearly posted.  Why can’t we have clearer signage for the dog ordinance?  The Police are
diligent about checking and giving out fines for breaking the parking restrictions at the beach.
Why are they not monitoring or enforcing the dog ordinance at the beach?  We as a town
regularly fine people for breaking ordinances, this issue deserves stronger measures.  

The council decided to give dog owners a place to run their dogs. They designated the dates
and times for those activities. It shouldn’t be in spite of the people the beach was intended to
serve. What beaches are dog free?  I would like to bring my daughter to the beach and not
have her be fearful of a dog encounter. We had a dog encounter earlier this week at Mackerel
Cove.  Would an animal control officer help to manage the large dog population here on the
island?  Could it augment the Police Department’s ability to oversee a large dog population?
 With the council’s help, the Rec department and the Police department need to put resources
into managing our public spaces better.  

Head’s Beach is not a large space, combined with confusing signage and poor patrolling, it has
become a space that is difficult for me and my family to enjoy. If we can’t help people use the
beach properly maybe it’s time to revisit the beach as a multi-use dog-park/recreational swim
beach. There is plenty of coastline on Jamestown with many access points to the water
especially in the Shores.  But, there are not many swim-able beaches for people to access and
enjoy in the Shores.   

One year later… The official swimming season has begun. I haven’t seen any change at
Head’s Beach regarding dog ordinance violations. I have witnessed numerous dog owners and
their pets violating the ordinance at Head’s Beach so far this year. I would estimate that of the
dozen times I’ve been to the beach since May 16th, I have witnessed about 10 violations of the
dog ordinance.  The purpose of this letter is not to assign blame but to shed light on the
problem.  I am not looking to punish dog owners.  I think the Council has put together a very
generous compromise that allows dog owners and people access and enjoyment of our beach.  
The ordinances are in place but we have failed the town as a whole by allowing the infractions
of the rules to go unchecked. My hope is that by emailing you all, Police Department, Rec
Department and the Town Council, you all can work together to help manage Head’s Beach
better so everyone can continue to enjoy the beach.  

Attached are photos from our latest beach visit last week. All the photos were taken between
the southern and middle jetty that is supposed to be for people to swim.

Page 113 of 135



Christopher Olobri

Jamestown RI, 02835

4017439615

On Jun 17, 2024, at 12:19 PM, Christopher Olobri  wrote:

Dear Chief Campbell and Council Members,
I appreciate your attention and understanding on the issue.  I hope an increased
police presence and focus on the rules around dogs at Head’s Beach will help. 

Thank you, 

Christopher Olobri

Jamestown RI, 02835

4017439615

On Jun 17, 2024, at 10:54 AM, Chief James Campbell
<jpcampbell@jamestownri.net> wrote:


Good morning Mr. Olobri,
 
I apologize for the experiences you and your family, especially your
daughter, have had at Heads Beach regarding dogs. While we conduct
multiple checks daily, including having our Community Service Officers
ensure compliance, there are clearly times when violations occur outside
our presence. Please contact our station whenever you observe violations
of the dog ordinance or any other laws.
 
Based on the video you sent, this dog and owner were clearly in violation
of the ordinance, which I've attached below. Our goal is to remind and
educate park visitors about the ordinance and potential violations. Please
don't hesitate to contact the Jamestown Police Department if you witness
a violation. We have informed our officers of this recent complaint and
will do everything possible to ensure you and your family enjoy a relaxing
visit to Heads Beach in the future.
 
We are working right this minute on issuing a reminder to the Jamestown
community via Facebook to address the issues regarding dogs at Heads
Beach. We will make it clear that there will be an increased presence due

Page 114 of 135



CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Jamestown email
system. Please do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and determine the content is safe.

to these blatant violations of the town ordinance. We hope that increased
enforcement and spreading the word on social media will help resolve the
problems at the beach. If you have any further questions, feel free to
reach out to me anytime.
 
 
HEAD’S BEACH
Dogs may be off-leash at any time: From October 1st through May 15th
Dogs may be off-leash limited hours only the portion of the beach north
of the middle rock jetty:
From May 16th through September 30th
6 a.m. to 10 a.m. and 5:30 p.m. until sunset
Dogs are not permitted to be anywhere on the beach:
From May 16th through September 30th at all other hours outside the
limited hours listed above
 
 
Sincerely,
 
Chief James P. Campbell
 
 

From: meagherjamestowntc@gmail.com
<meagherjamestowntc@gmail.com> 
Sent: Sunday, June 16, 2024 7:47 PM
To: 'Christopher Olobri' ; Michael White

; Michael White  Erik Brine
; Roberta Fagan <rfagan@jamestownri.net>;

tim@jamestownpress.com
Cc: Raymond DeFalco <rdefalco@jamestownri.net>; Chief James
Campbell <jpcampbell@jamestownri.net>; Edward Mello
<emello@jamestownri.net>; 'Rachael Olobri' 
Subject: RE: Head’s Beach Dog Rule infractions
 

 
Oh Mr Olobri, I am so sorry!! I am so sorry for the past two
years of having to console your daughter. I was going to say I
will send this to the town administrator and police chief but you
have done this already, so I think the first step, making us all
aware, has been taken and now we will be more attentive and
forceful in enforcing these well considered rules.
Thank you  for bringing this to our attention. I have included the

Page 115 of 135



town clerk on this email. Your email will be on our next agenda
and perhaps we might mention that summer rules are in force
and perhaps the newspaper will mention it too. ( I include them
on this email too.)  I hope your summer gets better. All the
best, Mary Meagher
 
From: Christopher Olobri <colobri@icloud.com> 
Sent: Sunday, June 16, 2024 7:03 PM
To: 

Cc: Raymond DeFalco <rdefalco@jamestownri.net>;
jpcampbell@jamestownri.net; emello@jamestownri.net; Rachael Olobri

>
Subject: Head’s Beach Dog Rule infractions
 
Dear Councilors,
I’m writing to you this late Father’s Day afternoon feeling
frustrated.  I live in the Shores with my wife and 2 year old
daughter. We frequent Head’s Beach throughout the summer.
 It’s not uncommon to see us there daily for an after-work swim
or quick dip. My frustration boiled over this afternoon when I
confronted a father, daughter and pet dog who came onto the
beach.  
 
My daughter is at an age (2) where she is scared of animals,
bugs etc.  Dogs cause a particular fear in her as she has had
more unwanted interactions with them while simply playing in
at Head’s beach. Take Jake, a very kind black lab who loves
children, swimming and playing fetch, causes terror every time
my daughter sees him.  Unfortunately Jake is off his leash
constantly and gets right up in the face of my daughter while
she is sitting playing next to us on the beach.  Jake’s owner is
a very kind man who reassures us from about 30 feet away
that Jake is friendly, which is true. Meanwhile, my daughter is
terrified, screaming and trying to climb up my physical body to
escape the black lab that is 2-3 times her size.  This story is
not a one off.  I know the dog by name because over the last
two years we have had numerous run-ins with Jake, his owner,
his owner and wife, his owner and grandson.  Very nice family,
could be our next door neighbor.
 
This is not a one-off event.  We frequent Head’s Beach almost
daily for short swims and more often than not I find myself
consoling my daughter because there is a dog south of the
middle jetty. I reached out to the recreation director via email
last year. At the time he referred me to call the police for dogs
and owners not in compliance with the head’s beach

Page 116 of 135

mailto:colobri@icloud.com
mailto:rdefalco@jamestownri.net
mailto:jpcampbell@jamestownri.net
mailto:emello@jamestownri.net


ordinance.  
 
This evening I reached my boiling point.  As we were entering
the beach at 430 pm, a woman pulled up, read the sign
referring to the dog rules, mentioned to her kids that the dog
wasn’t supposed to be on the beach and proceeded to let the
dog out, run around off leash and swim on the beach. (A video
will is attached of her and her dog). About ten minutes later 
 I confronted a father and daughter who came down to swim at
the beach. Their dog was loose and chasing after the young
girl as she ran onto the beach, leash trailing behind the dog.  I
asked him if he saw the sign about dogs on the beach.  He
said the dog was on a leash. I told him no dogs were allowed
on the beach. We left shortly after.  As we were getting into our
car the gentleman and his daughter wondered back onto the
grassy area of the beach. The first woman and her kids were
also on the grassy part of the beach walking back to their car.
 At that moment a police officer drove by. I tried to get their
attention by honking but they must not have heard me or
noticed to two sets of dogs on the beach.
 
My frustration is that there are signs that people either don’t
see, don’t understand, or don’t care to abide.  I find myself
trying to protect my daughter from other people’s pets when all
we want to do is enjoy the beach. Having lived here my entire
life I have fond memories of swimming at Head’s Beach. I want
my daughter to enjoy the beautiful town she is being raised in.
 That is why I am reaching out to you all.  I understand what
the town is trying to accomplish by creating a dog friendly area
at Head’s Beach north of the middle jetty. The issue that I am
experiencing is that no one is enforcing the rules for dogs at
the beach.  In-fact , I want you all to be aware that there is a
blatant disregard by some dog owners. The pet owners not
following the rules are truly disruptive for my family. My
daughter has developed such a fear of dogs that when we are
at the beach and she sees a dog, leashed or unleashed no
matter the size or distance, she becomes terrified that the dog
is going to approach her and get right in her face. 
 
What is being done to enforce the rules at Head’s Beach?  I
understand that the police should be enforcing the ordinance.
 What are the consequences for breaking the rules?  How
often are the police checking the beach?  Or is it up to me to
call the police every time a dog enters the beach ? (which is
almost every time we go the beach).  Am I reading the sign
correctly that dogs should only be north of the middle jetty
during the hours stated, meaning we should never be
confronting dogs in the grassy area before the beach and

Page 117 of 135



between the two jetties?
 
Thank you for your help on this matter,

Page 118 of 135



Page 119 of 135



Page 120 of 135



Page 121 of 135



Page 122 of 135



Page 123 of 135



Page 124 of 135



Page 125 of 135



Page 126 of 135



Page 127 of 135



Page 128 of 135



CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Jamestown email system. Please do
not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and determine the
content is safe.

From:
To: Roberta Fagan; peter@rubroc.com; wyatt@rubroc.com; Lisa Bryer; Dean Wagner
Cc:
Subject: 16 Pennsylvania Avenue, and Lot 804, Question of Merger
Date: Tuesday, June 24, 2025 4:16:26 PM
Attachments: 16 Pennsylvania Avenue.doc

Please see attached.

PETER M. COSEL

Jamestown RI 02835
401.847.0970   
 

Page 129 of 135

mailto:peter@rubroc.com
mailto:wyatt@rubroc.com
mailto:lbryer@jamestownri.net
mailto:dwagner@savagelawpartners.com

Peter M. Cosel

26 Pennsylvania Avenue

Jamestown RI 02835


June 24, 2025


The Honorable Jamestown RI Town Council 

Jamestown Town Hall


93 Narragansett Avenue


Jamestown Rhode Island 02835

Dear Honorable Members of the Jamestown Town Council:

I reside at 26 Pennsylvania Avenue along with my partner, Sheila Reilly. Recently it came to our attention that the property located at 16 Pennsylvania Avenue has been listed for sale. Here follows the position of Sheila Reilly and myself that 16 Pennsylvania Avenue, further described as Tax Assessor’s Plat 8, Lot 344 has merged with Lot 804.


In 1973, Joseph A. Stanlewicz, then title owner of the subject property, located in an R 20 zone, deeded to his daughter Bernice Walz a portion of his property (approx. 8,663 sf) which became Plat 8 Lot 804 as a result of his transfer.1 2 I submit this transfer was against that then zoning ordinance enacted in 1969.  In 1969, the area in question was zoned R-20.  The 1973 transfer of Joseph A. Stanlewicz created two substandard parcels.  The 1969 ordinance further provided in Article IV, Section 5:  

“… where no adjacent land is in the same ownership so as to form a larger land parcel, a lot smaller than the minimum dimensions and area required by this ordinance which was   a lot of record on the effective date of this ordinance may be used for a single family dwelling.  Accordingly, the improperly created Lot 804 should not qualify as a buildable lot.”

The importance of Article VI, Sec. 5 of the zoning ordinance cannot be over-emphasized; the clear intent of this section of the zoning ordinance is to alleviate the burden on the Town of substandard lots. 3

In this case, there is no hardship involved to the seller of the property. 16 Pennsylvania Avenue has an existing house on a lot of approximately 16,653 sf. The contiguous lot, 804, has no structure on it and contains approximately 8663 sf.  Our position is clear, these two parcels represent one lot in what is an R 20 zone and accordingly must be sold as a unit.

1. My email sent to Dennis Begin dated 5/22/25, should be disregarded as it incorrectly refers to “same ownership since prior to 2003, when Richard E. Walz, the owner of both said lots transferred … into the Richard E. Walz Family Living Trust.”


2. In 1991 Mr.Walz deeded the other portion of his property, (approx.. 16,653 sf) designated as lot 344, to his two daughters, Bernice Walz and Arlene Fortier.

3. See RJEP ASSOCIATES v. Hellewell et al., 560 A.2d 353 (1989).

We thank the Council for its attention to this matter. We are copying Town officials that have an interest in this issue.

Sincerely,


Peter M. Cosel


Via electronic mail only


cc:


Peter Ruggiero, Town Solicitor


Wyatt Brochu, Assistant Town Solicitor


Dean Wagner, Zoning Board Chair


Lisa Bryer, Town Planner

2





Page 130 of 135



Peter M. Cosel 
 Pennsylvania Avenue 
Jamestown RI 02835 

June 24, 2025 

The Honorable Jamestown RI Town Council 
Jamestown Town Hall 
93 Narragansett Avenue 
Jamestown Rhode Island 02835 

Dear Honorable Members of the Jamestown Town Council: 

I reside at 26 Pennsylvania Avenue along with my partner, Sheila Reilly. Recently it 
came to our attention that the property located at 16 Pennsylvania Avenue has been listed for 
sale. Here follows the position of Sheila Reilly and myself that 16 Pennsylvania Avenue, further 
described as Tax Assessor’s Plat 8, Lot 344 has merged with Lot 804. 

In 1973, Joseph A. Stanlewicz, then title owner of the subject property, located in an R 20 
zone, deeded to his daughter Bernice Walz a portion of his property (approx. 8,663 sf) which 
became Plat 8 Lot 804 as a result of his transfer.1 2 I submit this transfer was against that then 
zoning ordinance enacted in 1969.  In 1969, the area in question was zoned R-20.  The 1973 
transfer of Joseph A. Stanlewicz created two substandard parcels.  The 1969 ordinance further 
provided in Article IV, Section 5:   

“… where no adjacent land is in the same ownership so as to form a larger land parcel, a lot smaller 
than the minimum dimensions and area required by this ordinance which was   a lot of record on the 
effective date of this ordinance may be used for a single family dwelling.  Accordingly, the 
improperly created Lot 804 should not qualify as a buildable lot.” 

The importance of Article VI, Sec. 5 of the zoning ordinance cannot be over-emphasized; 
the clear intent of this section of the zoning ordinance is to alleviate the burden on the Town of 
substandard lots. 3 

In this case, there is no hardship involved to the seller of the property. 16 Pennsylvania 
Avenue has an existing house on a lot of approximately 16,653 sf. The contiguous lot, 804, has 
no structure on it and contains approximately 8663 sf.  Our position is clear, these two parcels 
represent one lot in what is an R 20 zone and accordingly must be sold as a unit. 

1. My email sent to Dennis Begin dated 5/22/25, should be disregarded as it incorrectly refers to
“same ownership since prior to 2003, when Richard E. Walz, the owner of both said lots transferred
… into the Richard E. Walz Family Living Trust.”

2. In 1991 Mr.Walz deeded the other portion of his property, (approx.. 16,653 sf) designated as lot
344, to his two daughters, Bernice Walz and Arlene Fortier.

3. See RJEP ASSOCIATES v. Hellewell et al., 560 A.2d 353 (1989).

Page 131 of 135



2 
 

We thank the Council for its attention to this matter. We are copying Town officials that 
have an interest in this issue. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Peter M. Cosel 
Via electronic mail only 
 
cc: 
Peter Ruggiero, Town Solicitor 
Wyatt Brochu, Assistant Town Solicitor 
Dean Wagner, Zoning Board Chair 
Lisa Bryer, Town Planner 

Page 132 of 135



TOWN OF BURRILLVILLE 

Office of Town Clerk 
Email: townclerk@burrillville.org 

row~i t\ tm rm•t; 
, , ;._ri: t~\'lllL . 1: .1 

Burrillville Town Council 
Resolution No. 25-25 

in opposition to 

Phone: 401-568-4300, ext. 133 
Fax: 401-568-0490 
RI Relay 1-800-745-5555 (TTY) 

Senate Bill 2025 - S 0909 and House Bill 2025 - H 6273 
Relating to Access to the Public Records Act (APRA) 

WHEREAS, the Access to Public Records Act (APRA) was enacted to promote transparency in 
government while balancing the need to protect personal privacy and maintain efficient 
public operations; and 

WHEREAS, compliance with the existing APRA requirements is already burdensome and expensive, 
particularly for small towns and other public bodies with limited resources and strained 
budgets; and 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 2025 - S 0909 and House Bill 2025 - H 6273 propose sweeping amendments to 
the APRA that increase the burdens and costs on public bodies, reduce protections for 
personal privacy, and do not meaningfully further the goal of government transparency; 
these changes include but are not limited to: 

• Expanding disclosure of police reports not resulting in arrests; 

• Requiring the release of final internal affairs reports; 
• Mandating body-worn camera footage to be released within thirty (30) days; 

• Removing protections for communications between elected officials and their 
constituents; 

• Expanding the arrest record reporting window from five (5) to thirty (30) days; 

• Releasing 911 call audio and related electronic transmissions; 
• Reducing allowable copy fees and capping hourly retrieval and redaction costs; 

• Proposing a procedure for dealing with "vexatious requests" that will not be 
helpful or effective; and 

• Imposing increased civil fines on public officials; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed language would increase the already substantial burden on small towns and 
public bodies with limited resources, undermine important personal privacy interests, chill 
communication between elected officials and their constituents, and disrupt essential 
public safety operations while providing little to no benefit in terms of increased 
government transparency; and 

WHEREAS, cities and towns often respond to highly senstive incidents, including those involving 
mental health crises, overdoses, domestic disputes, and juveniles, in which no arrest is 
made, and the mandatory release of reports or footage in these cases would risk exposing 
traumatic and private information while providing no benefits in terms of promoting 
government transparency; and 

105 Harrisville Main Street, Harrisville, RI 02830 

Page 133 of 135



WHEREAS, the financial and operational impact of implementing these provisions, including broader 
search and redaction requirements, reduced cost recovery, and a mandated 30-day 
disclosure window for sensitive police body-worn camera footage, could strain already 
limited municipal resources and personnel, and would be unfair to taxpayers; and 

WHEREAS, most small towns and public bodies with limited resources do not have the technical 
expertise or capacity to timely and cost-effectively review and redact video and audio 
content; and 

WHEREAS, the wholesale release of internal communications, internal affairs reports, 911 records, 
police reports that do not result in arrest, and communications between elected officials 
and their constituents will have a chilling effect on community engagement, deter 
emergency reporting, disrupt public safety operations, reduce the effectiveness of internal 
affairs investigations and erode the trust between residents and local elected officials; and 

WHEREAS, increasing fines that can be assessed against public bodies with limited resources is 
unnecessarily punitive, unfair to taxpayers, and is not an effective way to encourange 
compliance; and 

WHEREAS, the vexatious misuse of the APRA is, unfortunately, a common occurrence, and such 
conduct is unfair to public bodies and the taxpayers who support them, but the proposed 
language of Rhode Island General Law §38-2-17 is not helpful because its language is vague 
and imposes heavy-handed punitive measures against public bodies that file unsuccessful 
petitions; this will deter public bodies from defending themselves against vexatious 
conduct and will embolden those who would use the APRA in a vexatious manner; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments are essentially an unfunded State mandate that will increase 
burdens and costs on small towns and public bodies with limited resources; and 

WHEREAS, any amendments to the APRA should be considered carefully and in collaboration with the 
local goverments, local officials, and public bodies that are most impacted by them. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Council of the Town of Burrillville opposes Senate 
Bill 2025 - S 0909 and House Bill 2025 - H 6273 and would ask the Legislature to reject these 
amendments in their entirety. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this Resolution be sent to the Governor of the State of Rhode 
Island, the Rhode Island General Assembly and the City and Town Councils. 

Adopted this 11th day of June 2025. 

~~ 
Donald A. Fox, President 
Burrillville Town Council 

Page 134 of 135



Page 135 of 135


	I.Appointments_M Schnack_Ft Getty COMMITTEE APPLICATION 2025
	I.Appointments_O Hendley Ft. Getty
	Owen Hendley - application for Ft Getty Committee.pdf
	Owen Hendley - Resume May 2025.pdf

	V.A.Res&Proc_2025-22 Resolution for HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT Bonds
	Town of Jamestown
	Resolution of the Town Council

	V.B.Res&Proc_2025-23 Sunflower Family Festival Day August 23
	VI.A.1.Public Hearings_BL-28
	VI.A.2Public Hearing_F-25-12_JAC July 16 2025
	VI.B.Public Hearing_PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE ARTICLE_III.___MECHANICAL_OR_COIN_OPERATED_DEVICES_AND_ARCADES
	TOWN OF JAMESTOWN
	Sec. 6-76. Revocation.
	Sec. 6-92. Minors under 14; forfeiture of license.
	Sec.6-93. Capacity, occupancy and fire regulations.
	No arcade shall be maintained, operated or conducted unless the arcade is in compliance with all state and local capacity, occupancy and fire regulations.


	VI.C.1.LicensesandPermits_CMS Arcade License_Multi-License
	VII.A.TA Report July 7.2025
	Town Administrator
	93 Narragansett Avenue

	VIII.A.Unfinished Business_2025. Final.FERRY TERMINAL PROPOSED PROJECTS - 1 E FERRY WHARF -6-30-20259 (002)
	XI.A.1.Consent_AHC Min 5-21-25 approved
	XI.A.2.Consent_BOC_04-16-2025 Minutes v2 - Approved
	A) Approval of Minutes; Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote:
	1) Board of Canvassers meeting of March 26, 2025.

	A) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Issues with Political Signage around Jamestown.
	Mr. Newman opened the agenda item of the appointments to the Jamestown Elections Training and Advisory Committee and commented that it has been difficult to find interested individuals for the committee and also to adhere to the bipartisan requirement...
	B) Review, Discussion, and/or Action, and/or Vote: Board of Canvassers Liaison to the Elections Training and Advisory Committee.
	A) Review, Discussion, and/or Action, and/or Vote: Financial Town Meeting (FTM) to be held on Monday, June 2, 2025.

	XI.A.3.Consent_BOC_04-30-2025 Minutes v2 - Approved
	A) Approval of Minutes; Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote:
	1) Board of Canvassers meeting of April 16, 2025.

	A) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Financial Town Meeting (FTM) to be held on Monday, June 2, 2025.

	XI.A.4.Consent_BOC_20250508 Minutes - Approved
	A) Approval of Minutes; Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote:
	1) Board of Canvassers meeting of April 30, 2025.

	A) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Issues with Political Signage around Jamestown.

	XI.A.5.Consent_BOC_20250602 FTM Minutes - Approved
	XI.A.6.Consent_5-14-25 JHC Approved Minutes
	XI.A.7.JHA.april minutes 25
	XI.A.8.JHA.May 9th meeting JhA 25
	XI.A.9..JHA.May 14th special meeting 25
	XI.B.Consent_ArtSignWorks_2nd Proof 06-262025
	XI.D.1.Consent_ENT-25-38 St. Matthews Summer Fair July 19 2025
	XI.D.2.Consent_ENT-25-40
	XI.D.3.Consent_ENT-25-41
	XI.E.1.Consent_STR-129
	XI.E.2.Consent_STR-174
	XII.A.1.Communications_Lawn Avenue Fifth Graders
	XII.A.2.Communications_Olobri_Re_ Head's Beach Dog Rule infractions 
	XII.A.3.Communications_Sanborn
	XII.A.4.Communications_Bessinger
	SKM_C454e25070216340.pdf
	SKM_C454e25070216341

	XII.A.5.Communications_Cosel 16 Pennsylvania Avenue, and Lot 804, Question o...
	XII.B.1.Communications_6-11-2025 25 APRA Legislation
	XII.B.2.Communications_Smithfield Resolution - Gun Control
	ADP5D68.tmp
	I. TOWN COUNCIL INTERVIEW SCHEDULE: The Jamestown Town Council will conduct interviews of applicants for the committee vacancies as follows:
	II. ROLL CALL
	III. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	IV. OPEN FORUM
	A) Scheduled request to address: None at this time.
	B) Non-scheduled request to address.

	V. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, PRESENTATIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS
	A) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Resolution 2025-22, Resolution of the Town Council Authorizing Issuance of Up to $950,000 in Bonds for Public Works (Highway) Vehicles and Other Equipment
	B) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Proclamation 2025-23, August 23, 2025, Sunflower Family Festival Day.

	VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS, LICENSES, AND PERMITS
	The Town Council will review each license application and vote on it individually. All approvals for licenses and permits are subject to the resolution of debts, taxes, and appropriate signatures as well as, when applicable, proof of insurance.
	A) Public Hearings:  Town Council Sitting as the Alcohol Beverage Licensing Board
	1) Notice is hereby given by the Town Council of the Town of Jamestown, being the Licensing Board in said Town as provided under Title 3, Chapters 1-12 of the General Laws of Rhode Island 1956, and as amended, that the following RENEWAL applications h...
	2) Notice is hereby given by the Town Council of Jamestown, being the Licensing Board in said Town: Pursuant to RIGL §3-7-14, the following license application (F-25-12) has been received under said Act for a one-day license on July 16, 2025:
	a) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote for Approval of the Jamestown Historical Society one-day CLASS F (NON-PROFIT) LIQUOR LICENSE (Number 6 of 12 licenses per calendar year issued per RIGL§3-7-14)


	B) Public Hearings: Proposed amendment to the Code of Ordinances regarding Chapter 6 - Amusements And Entertainment, Article III. Mechanical or Coin-Operated Devices and Arcades; Division 1: Sec. 6-56, Division 2: Sec 6-71, Sec 6-72, Sec 6-73, Sec. 6-...
	1) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote:  Approval of the proposed amendments to Chapter 6 - Amusements And Entertainment, Article III. Mechanical or Coin-Operated Devices and Arcades; Division 1: Sec. 6-56, Division 2: Sec 6-71, Sec 6-72, Se...

	C) Licenses and Permits
	1) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: Approval of Application that have been received by the Town Council for Arcade License/Multi-License Application for the year July 7, 2025-December 31, 2025, upon resolution of debts, taxes, State appr...
	a) Applicant:   Conanicut Marine Services



	VII. COUNCIL, ADMINISTRATOR, SOLICITOR, COMMISSION/COMMITTEE COMMENTS & REPORTS
	Please Note the Following Items are Status Reports and Matters of Interest to the Council and are for Informational Purposes unless Indicated Otherwise:
	A) Town Administrator’s Report: Edward A. Mello
	1) Senior Center Project
	2) Town Hall Project
	3) Town Welcome Signs (consent agenda)
	4) Sustainability Coordinator
	5) Paving Update
	6) Short-Term Rental registration update
	7) Streetlights maintenance update
	8) Electricity Purchase (consent agenda)
	9) Town website


	VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	A) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote: At the request of Town Administrator Mello, discussion of the proposed master vision plan for ferry terminal improvements, Phase I, Ferry Fender Piling Project

	IX. NEW BUSINESS
	No items at this time.

	X. ORDINANCES, APPOINTMENTS, VACANCIES, AND EXPIRING TERMS
	No items at this time.

	XI. CONSENT AGENDA
	A) Minutes of Boards/Commissions/Committees
	1) Affordable Housing, May 21, 2025
	2) Board of Canvassers, April 16, 2025
	3) Board of Canvassers, April 30, 2025
	4) Board of Canvassers, May 8, 2025
	5) Board of Canvassers, June 2, 2025
	6) Harbor Commission, May 14, 2025
	7) Housing Authority, April 9, 2025
	8) Housing Authority, May 9, 2025
	9) Housing Authority, May 14, 2025

	B) Town Council consent for the replacement of the (2) two Town welcome signs, as presented by ArtSignWorks, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $4,900.
	C) Town Council consent to fully execute a purchasing agreement for electricity for the period of December 2025 through December 2029 at a rate of $0.1149/ kWh, through a cooperative purchasing agreement with the Rhode Island League of Cities and Town...
	D) All One-Day Event/ Entertainment license application approvals are subject to any COVID-19 protocols in effect at the time of the event:
	1) Applicant: St. Matthew Church (ENT-25-38)
	2) Applicant: Jamestown Arts Center (JAC) (ENT-25-40)
	3) Applicant: Out of the Box Gallery (OOBG) (ENT-25-41)

	E) Ratification of the Administratively approved Short-Term Rental application(s) for the period of January 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025, duly advertised in the    editions(s) of the Jamestown Press; upon resolution of debts, taxes, State approv...
	1) STR-129  Annlee Landman 10 Boston Avenue
	2) STR-174  Anna Whitson  20 Hull Street


	XII. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS AND
	RESOLUTIONS FROM OTHER RHODE ISLAND CITIES AND TOWNS
	A) Communications Received:
	1) Copy of letters to: Town Council
	2) Copy of email to:  Town Council
	3) Copy of email to:  Town Council
	4) Copy of email to:  Town Council
	5) Copy of email to:  Town Council

	B) Proclamations and Resolutions from other Rhode Island Cities and Towns
	1) Burrillville Town Council, Resolution 25-25, In Opposition to Senate Bill 2025- S 0909 and House Bill 2025- H 6273 Relating to Access to the Public Records Act (APRA).
	2) Resolution of the Town of Smithfield, Opposing House Bill 5436 and Senate Bill 359.


	XIII. OPEN FORUM
	A) Continued (If necessary)

	XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	A) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote in Executive Session and/or open session pursuant to RIGL §42-46-5(a) Subsection (5) the acquisition and/or lease of real property for public purposes, or of the disposition of publicly held property wh...
	B) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote in Executive Session and/or open session pursuant to § 42-46-5(a) Subsection (2) Collective Bargaining (NAGE 69).
	C) The Town Council may convene into Executive Session to discuss, take possible action, and/or vote pursuant to the relevant requirements of R.I.G.L. § 42-46-5(a) Subsection (1) Personnel (job performance, character, or physical or mental health of T...
	D) Review, Discussion, and/or Action and/or Vote in Executive Session and/or open session pursuant to RIGL §42-46-5(a) Subsection (5) the acquisition and/or lease of real property for public purposes, or of the disposition of publicly held property wh...

	XV. ADJOURNMENT

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



